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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To The Members of Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements (“financial statements”) of Suzlon
Power Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section
143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2018, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 39(b) in the financial statements, which indicates that the
Company has accumulated losses resulting into complete erosion of its net worth and has
incurred a net loss of Rs. 40.93 crore during the year ended March 31, 2018. As stated in
Note 39(b), these conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis for the
reasons stated in the said Note. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

f) The matter described in material uncertainty related to going concern paragraph
above, in our opinion may have an adverse effect functioning of the Company.
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g} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A", Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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Jayesh Parmar
(Partner)
Pune, May 2.9, 2018 (Membership No. 106388)



ANNEXURE “"A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Suzlon Power
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements (“financial statements”) of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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| Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reportirig is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Interna! Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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Jayesh Parmar
(Partner)
Pune, May 29, 2018 (Membership No. 106388)



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

(i)

(ii)

{iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

{vil)

In respect of its property plant and equipment / fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property plant and equipment / fixed assets.

(b) The property plant and equipment / fixed assets were physically verified during the
year by the Management in accordance with a regular program of verification which, in
our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act.

The Company has not aranted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit during the year,

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended
prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section {1) of Section 148 of the Act, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax and Goods and Service Tax as on March 31, 2018 on account of
disputes.
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(ix)

()

{xi)

{xii)
(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and
banks. The Company did not have any outstanding dues payable to the government during
the year. The Company has not issued any debentures,

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{(including debt instruments) and according to the information and explanation given to us,
term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purpose for which
they were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid / provided managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under the clause (xi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons conhected with them.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

ﬁ*“’“’f;‘.‘f’/
Jayesh Parmar
(Partner)

Pune, May 29, 2018 {(Membership No. 106388)



Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2018
Ali amounts in Rupees Crore, unless otherwise stated

As at As at
Parti
artioulars Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 0.18 0.24
Financial assets
Investments 5 159.52 159.42
Other financial assets 7 2.41 242
Other non-current assets 8 245 1.64
164.56 163.72
Current assets
Inventories 9 221,80 188.01
Financial assets
Trade receivables 3] 111.97 228.72
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1.01 0.44
Other financial assets 7 0.06 0.09
Current tax asset, net 8 0.24 1.76
Other current assets 8 34.64 94.02
368.72 513.04
Total assets 534.28 676.76
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 11 194,61 194.61
Other equity 12 {276.69) (235.76)
{82.08) {41.15)
Non-gurrent liabilities
Financial flabilities
Borrowings 13 433,13 564.84
Provisions 17 0.34 0.59
433.47 565.43
Current liabilitles
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 6.39 9.64
Trade payables i4 98.84 120.23
Other financial liabilities 15 17.12 16.52
Other current liabilities 16 59.88 §.24
Provisions 17 0.66 0.85
182.89 152,48
Total equity and liabilities 534.28 676.76
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.

In terms of our reporl attached

For Deloilte Haskins & Sells |LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117 366W/W-100018

oz

Jayesh Parmar
Partner
Membership No.106388
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Place : Pune
Dale : May 29, 20186

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Suzion Power Infrastructure Limited

BalraJsinh A. Parmar
Managing Director
DIN : 00002276

el padnkan™

Sharvari A. Deshpande
Company Secretary
Membership No.A19938

Place : Pune
Dale : May 28, 2018

Vinod R.Tanti
Cirector
DN : 00002266

Do~

IND’rev'éndra Golchha
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.064625




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
All amounts in Rupees Crore, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income
Revenue from operalions 18 120.86 390.19
Other income 19 0.36 0.55
121.22 390,74
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed and bought out services 20 11.47 295.24
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods 20 (15.38) 28.44
Employee benefits expenses 21 6.61 7.93
Depreciation expenses 4 0.1 0.17
Finance costs 22 57.34 63.15
Other expenses 23 2.25 8.46
162,40 403,39
Loss before exceptional items and tax (41.18) (12.65)
Exceptional items 24 - 32.18
Loss before tax (41.18) (44.83)
Tax expenses 25 ~ -
Loss after tax {41.18) (44.83)
Other comprehensive income
Itom that will not be reclassified to profit or loss In subsequent years :

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 26 0.25 {0.37)
Income tax effect on the above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.25 {0.37}

Itern that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.25 {0.37)
Total comprehensive income for the year {40.93) {45.20}
Earnings /(loss) per equity share:

Basic and diluted [Nominal value of share Rs 10 {Rs 10)] 27 (2.12) (2.30)
Summary of significant accounting policies 23

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial siatements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells |ILF

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number : 117368WAW-100018
e

Jayesh Parmar

Fariner

Membership No.106388

Place : Pune
Date : May 29, 2018

For and ¢n behall of the Board of Directors of
Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited

Balrajsinh A. Parmar
Managing Director
DIN 1 00002276

SE K aneads kav

Sharvar A. Deshpande
Company Secretary
Membership No.A19936

Place : Pune
Date : May 29, 2018

‘Devendra Golchha
Chief Financial Officer
Membarship No 064625

Vinod R Tanti
Director
DiN : 00002266




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2018
All amounts in Rupees Crore, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

March 31, 2018

Margh 31, 2017

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss hefore tax {41.18) {44.83)
Adjustments for;
Depreciation 0.11 0.17
Loss / (gain) on property, plant and equipments soid / discarded, net 0.00* -
Finance income (0.36) (0.55)
Interest expenses 66.70 51,89
Impairment allowance (1.18) 0.82
Allowance for doubifu! debts and advances (1.79) -
Bad debls written off 0.12 -
Provision for impairment of investment - 3218
Employee share-based payment expense - 0.03
Operating profit before working capital changes 12.42 49.71
Movements in working capital
{increase)! decrease in lrade receivables 119.81 {82.38}
{Increase)! decrease in inventories (33.79) 41.21
(increase) decrease in financial assets and other assets £9.43 20.45
(decrease) Increase in other liabilities, financial liabilities and provisions 32,00 78.11
Gash {used In)/ generated from operating activities 189.67 107.10
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 0.71 {0.42)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities A 190.38 106.68
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (C.08) (0.25)
Purchase of investiments (C.10) -
Inlerest received 0.37 0.57
Net cash (used in) generated from investing activities B 0.21 0.32
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings {174.38) (88.95)
Proceeds/ (repayment) from/ of short term-borrowings, net (3.25) (8.22)
Interest paid (12.39) {10.91)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities c (190.02) (108.08)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 0.57 {1.08}
Cash and cash equivalants at the beginning of year 0.44 1.52
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1.01 0.44
Components of cash and cash equivalents March 31,’?012 March 31,A25(J:§.'
Cash on hand 0.11 0.08
Balance with bank 0.80 0.36
1.01 0.44
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3

* Less than Rs 0.01 Crore.
Notes:
1 The figures in brackets represent outflows.

The accompanying notes are an integral past of the financial statements.

In terms of qur report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018
==
Jayesh Parmar

Pariner
Membership No 106388

Place : Pune
Date : May 29, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited

Balrajsinh A. Parmar
Managing Director
DIN . 00002276

Sharvari A. Deshpande
Company Secretary
Membership No.A19936

Place : Pune
Date : May 29, 2018

Me

; eri}ii\S

Vinod R.Tant
Directer
DIN : 00002266

Devendra Golchha
Chief Financial Officer




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018
All amounts in Rupees Crore, unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

No. in Crore Rs in Crore
Equity shares of Rs 10 each, issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 1, 2016 19.46 194.61
Issue of share capital (refer Note 11) - -
As at March 31, 2017 19.46 194.61
Issue of share capital (refer Note 11) - -
As at March 31, 2018 19.46 194.61

b. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Share option Retained Total
outstanding account earnings
As at April 1, 2016 0.24 {190.83) {190.59)
Loss for the year - (44.83) (44.83)
Other comprehensive income - (0.37) (0.37) _
Total comprehensive income 0.24 {236.03) (235.79)
Share based payment {refer Note 29) 0.03 - 0.03
As at March 31, 2017 0.27 {236.03) (235.76)
As at April 1, 2017 0.27 (236.03) {235.76)
loss for the year - {41.18) (41.18)
Cther comprehensive income - 0.25 0.25
Total comprehensive income 0.27 (276.96) (276.69})
Share based payments (refer Note 29) - - -
As at March 31, 2018 0.27 (276.96) (276.69)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3
a) Refer Note 12 for nature and purpose of reserves.
The accompanying nctes are an integrat pari of the financial statements,
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis Suzlon Power infrastructure Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018
Jayesh Parmar Bairajsinh A. Parmar Vinod R.Tanti
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 106388 N : 60002276 DIN ; 00002286
- SN appaatnd
o rad ST
Aé:ii?::nts Sharvari A. Deshpande Devendra Gelchha
' Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No A19936 Membership No.064625

Place : Pune Place : Pune
Date : May 29, 2018 Date : May 29, 2018




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

All amounts in Rupees Crore, uniess otherwise stated

1.

2.1

2.2

Company information

Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited ('SPIL’ or the ‘Company’) having CIN U45203TZ2004PLC011180 is a
public company domiciled in india and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The
registered office of the Company is located at 1055/18, 2" Floor, Gowtham Center, Near Anna Statue, Avinashi
Road, Coimbatore-841018, India. The principal place of business is its headquarters located at One Earth,
Hadapsar, Pune, India.

The Company is engaged in the business of construction and sale of power evacuation infrastructure facility.
Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("the Rules"),

- Suzlon Energy Limited, the holding company has prepared consolidated financiai statements which includes

the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company, therefore the Company has prepared
these standalone financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest Crore (INR
00,00,000) up to two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by— S R B C & Co. LLP, Pune

Recent accounting developments

Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's

financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when
they become effective.

"The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment

Rules, 2018 and has amended the following standards:

Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers: On March 28, 2018, the MCA notified Ind AS 115. The
core principal of new standard is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
good or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further, the new standard requires enhanced disclosures
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts
with customers,

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

» Retrospective approach — Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each
reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors.

* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial
application (Cumulative catch-ug approach).




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

All amounts in Rupees Crore, unjess otherwise stated

2.3

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial period beginning from April 1, 2018. The Company
wilt adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method and accordingly,
comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The company
is evaluating the impact of adoption of ind AS 115 and based on the preliminary assessment there shall be no
material impact.

Summary of significant accounting policies

. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is;

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting periad, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used {o settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A liability is current when:

Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The Company classifies all other fiabilities as non-current. The operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financiai instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either,

*» Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

Alt assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole;

* lLevel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identicat assets or liabilities.

¢ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each
reporting period,

The company management determines the policies and procedures for recurring and non-recurring fair vatue
measurement. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company management. The
management decides after discussion with external valuers, about valuation technigue and inputs to use for
each case.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For
this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair vajue
of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or fiability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above,

. Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises sale of power infrastructure facilities, project consultancy service and interest income.
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bensfit will flow to the Company and that
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is disclosed, net of discounts, goods and service tax ("GST)
or other taxes, as applicable.

Power evacuation infrastructure facilities

Revenue from power evacuation infrastructure facilities are recognised upon commissioning and electrical
installation of the Wind Turbine Generator (WTG) to the said facilities followed by approval for commissioning
of WTG from the concerned authorities.

interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable. Interest income is incfuded in other income in the statement of profit and foss.
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d. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
sither in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates the positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

« When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductibie temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liahility in a transaction that is not a business comhination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will he available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liahility is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (sither in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in ¢errelation fo the underlying
transaction either in OC1 or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
- tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority,

L ACuntanis
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e. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of PPE that are not yet ready for their intended use as at the
balance sheet date. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives,

Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the written down value method {('WDV") based on the useful lives and residual
values estimated by the management in accordance with Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 as per table
given below. The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining
components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset,

Type of asset Useful lives {years)
Buildings 281t0 58
Computers 3
Office equipments 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 10

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset on the date of disposal and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

f. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

g. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Company as a lessee

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, Initial direct costs such as legal costs,
brokerage costs, etc. are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease
income on an operating lease is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit's {'CGU") net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life,

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in estimates
of recoverable amount. The carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would
have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

Inventories

Inventories of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and estimated
net realisable value. However, raw material and other items held for use in the power evacuation facilities are
not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at
or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods include the cost of material, labour and attributable overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

i the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lisbility. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund, employee state insurance and superannuation fund are
defined contribution schemes. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the funds
and the contribution payable to fund is recognised as an expense, when an employee renders the related
setvice. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance shest date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity is defined benefit obligations and is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation, using projected unit credit method as at each balance sheet date.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabilit ), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a cotresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
Measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognised the following changes in defined benefit obligation as an expense in statement of profit or ioss:

+ Service cost comprising of current service cost, past service cost gains and loss on entitiements and non-
routine seftlement.

» Net interest expenses or income.,

Short-term compensated absences are provided based on estimates, Long term compensated absences andg
other long-term employee benefits are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using projected unit
credit method, as at each balance sheet date. The entire leave is presented as a current liability in the balance
sheet, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the
reporting date.

Share-based payments

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share option outstanding account in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
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The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

Setvice and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/for
performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity
or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through
prefit or loss,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

.Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial ltability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Ali financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorttisation is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivabtes,

Debt instrument at FVYTOC!
A ‘debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by coltecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b} The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPJ.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EiR method.

The Company has not designated any financial asset as at FVTOCI.
Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC!, is classified as at FEVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch'),

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the P&L,

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies are classified as at FVTPL, For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
The Company has not designated any equity instruments as at FVTOCI.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the P&L..

Investment in equity shares of subsidiary have been measured at cost less impairment allowance, if any.
De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when;

*» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either:

a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC!

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on frade receivables
or contract revenue receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on Bfetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reveris
to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuits from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

* All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the
financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual
term of the financial instrument.

» Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts, Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing
of the receivables balance and historical experience. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not fo be collectible.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and
loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

* Financial assets measured as af amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as
an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

« Loan commiiments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet,
i.e. as a liability.

* Debtinstruments measured at FVTOC!: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumuiated
impairment amount' in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly atiributabile transaction costs.

\?3;““‘
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The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that-are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unfess they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial fiabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

The Company on a contract by contract basis, elects to account for financial guarantee contracts, as a financial
instrument or as an insurance contract, as specified in Ind AS 109 of Financial Instrument and Ind AS 104 on
fnsurance Contracts. For insurance contract, the Company performs a liability adequacy test (i.e. assesses the
likelihood of any pay-out based on current discontinued estimates of future cash flows), and any deficiency is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

All amounts in Rupees Crore, uniess otherwise stated

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obiigation under-the liability is discharged orcancelled orexpires:
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same-lender on substantially different terms.-
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial fiabilities.
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the
business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recoghised gains,
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceabie legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

n. Earnings/ (loss) per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ {loss) for the period attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for any bonus shares issued during the year and also after the
balance sheet date but before the date the financial statements are approved by the board of directors. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares as appropriate.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless
issued at a later date.

o. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

a. Significant judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policy

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Guarantee classified as insurance contract

The Company, holding Company along with its identified Indian subsidiaries and a joint venture are obligors
to the State Bank of India and other indian lenders and have given security in connection with loan availed
by AE Rotor Holding B.V. ('AERH"), The Netherlands , a step down wholly owned subsidiary of the ultimate
holding company. The Company has treated the said guarantee as an insurance contract under Ind AS 104.
Please refer to Note 32 (b) for further details.

Revenue recoghition and presentation

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has exposure to
the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to
determine if it is acting as principal or as an agent. When deciding the most appropriate basis for presenting
revenue or costs of revenue, both the legal form and substance of the agreement between the Company
and its business partners are reviewed to determine each party’s respective role in the transaction.

b. Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Uncertainty about these assumption and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabitities affected in future periods.

Allowance for trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. The Company recognises impairment loss allowance
based on fifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment
loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. The carrying value of allowance for doubtful
debts is Rs 2.07 Crore (Previous year. Rs 5.05 Crore). Refer Note 6.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the vatuation model including the expected life of the share
option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 29.
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Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits, future tax planning strategies. The company has unabsorbed
depreciation, unabsorbed business losses, unutilised MAT credit details which are given in Note 25. The
unabsorbed depreciation can be carried forward indefinitely. The business loss can be carried forward for 8
years, MAT credit for 15 years. Majority of business losses will expire in between March 2021 to March
2023, MAT credit in between March 2024 to March 2026. As there are not certain taxable temporary
differences or tax planning operations, the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets on conservative
basis. Refer Note 25,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
ptans operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent
with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate used in determining the defined benefit plan obligations differ from subsidiary to
subsidiary. The estimates of future salary increases take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 28.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Property, plant and equipment

Refer Note 2.3 e for the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 4.

Recompense lability

The Company is in negotiation with CDR lenders for a voluntary exit from CDR scheme, The Company has
recognised recompense liabitity payable to CDR lenders based on management estimate which is derived
considering certain scenarios and assumptions in relation to interest rate, waiver in recompense, timing of
loan repayment and CDR exit etc. The amount payable by the Company as recompense is dependent on
various factors and also on discussions and negotiations with the CDR lenders. Refer Note 15.
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4. Property, plant and equipment

e Neot
Gross block Accumulated depreciation block

Particulars As at As at As at Charge for As at As at

April 1, Additions Disposals March 31, April 1, thg ear Disposals March 31, March 31,

2017 2018 2017 ¥ 2018 2018

Buildings 0.02 - - 0.02 0.00" 0.00* - 0.00* 0.01
Furniture and B -

fixtures .03 - - 0.03 0.02 0.00 0.02 0.01
Computer and x -

office equipments 0.40 £.08 0.00 0.46 0.20 0.11 0.31 0.15

Vehicles 0.01 - - 0.01 0.00% 0.00* - 0.00* 0.01

Total 0.48 0.06 0.00* 0.52 0.22 0.11 B 0.33 .18

Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net biock

Particulars As at As at As at Charge for As at As at

April 1, Additions Disposals March 31, April 1, thg oar Disposals March 31, March 31,

2016 2017 2016 y 2017 2017

Buildings 0.02 . - 0.02 0.00" 0.00* - 0.00* 0.02

Furniture and
fixtures 0.03 - - 0.03 0.01 0.01 - 0.02 0.01
Computer and

office equipments 0.15 £.25 - 0.40 0.04 0.186 - 0,20 0.20

Vehicles 0.01 - 0.01 0.00* 0.00 - 0.00" 0.01

Total 0.21 0.25 - 0.46 0.05 017 - 0.22 0.24

a) For contractual commitment with respect to property, plant and equipment refer Note 31.

b) For details of property, plant and equipment given as security to lenders refer Note 13(d).

* Less than Rs 0.01 Crore.

. Investments

Non-current investment at cost

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries

191,600,000 (Previous year: 191,600,000) equity shares of Rs 10
each of Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limited

Investment in Green infra Renewable Energy Limited
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Less : Impaitment allowance

Total

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments at cost

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

191.60 191.60

0.10 -
(32.18) (32.18)
159.52 159.42
159.52 159.42
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6. Trade receivables

Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less : Allowance for doubtful debts

Total
Current

Unsecured, considered good
Less ; Impairment allowance

Total

The movement in impairment allowance as per ECL model is as under:

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Impairment allowance during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

0.94 2.74
0.94 2.74
(0.94) (2.74)
113.10 231.03
(1.13) (2.31)
111,97 228.72

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

2.31 1.49
(1.18) 0.82
113 2.31

Trade receivables include receivables of Rs 2.50 Crore {Previous year: Rs 27.79 Crore} from holding company,

Rs 20,23 Crore (Previous year: Rs 38.81 Crore) from subsidiary company, Rs 17.84 Crore (Previous year: Rs
2.38 Crore) from entities where KMP has significant influence.

For details of trade receivables given as security to lenders refer Note 13(d).

. Other financial assets

Non-current

Bank balances (refer Note below)
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)

Total

Current

Loans and advances to employees
Interest accrued on deposits, lcans and advances

Total

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

2.01 2.01
0.40 0.41
2.41 2.42
0.02 0.05
0.04 0.04
0.06 0.09

Bank balances represents margin money deposits, which are subject to first charge towards non-fund facilities

from borrowers,

For details of financial assets given as security to lenders refer Note 13(d).

Ali the financial assets are disclosed at amortised cost.
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8. Other assets

Non-current

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Advance income tax {net of provisions) 245 1.64
Total 2.45 1.64
Current

Advances recoverable in kind (unsecured, considered good) 16.12 82.22
Advance income tax (net of provisions) 0.24 1.76
Prepaid expenses 0.97 -
Balances with government authorities 17.55 11.80
Total 34.88 95.78

For details of other assets given as security to fenders refer Note 13(d).

Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Raw materials [including goods-in-transit Rs Nil

10.

{Previous year: Rs Nil}] 28.50 11.09
Work-in-progress 110.47 90.18
Finished goods 81.83 86.74
Total 221.80 188.01

For details of inventories given as security to lenders refer Note 13(d).

Cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Balances with banks in current accounts 0.90 0.38
Cash on hand 0.11 0.08
Total 1.01 0.44

There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as the end of the reporting period and prior
period.

F@Zﬁemd
aountanis |

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

All amounts in Rupees Crore, uniess otherwise stated

11. Equity share capital

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Authorised share capital
197,000,000 (Previous year: 197,000,000) equity shares

of Rs 10/~ each 197.00 197.00
197.00 197.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
194,610,000 (Previous year: 194,610,000) equity shares 194.61 194.61
of Rs 10/- each '
194.61 194.61

a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
i Number of - Number .
arioars shares X1 ofchares RS TM
(Crore) {Crorg)
At the beginning of the year 19.46 194.61 19.46  194.61
Issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 19.46 194.61 19.46  194.61

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of alt preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c¢. Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company is as below:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
194.61 194.61

194,610,000 (Previous year: 184,610,000) equity shares
of Rs 10/- each

{THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Suzion Power Infrastructure Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

All amounts in Rupees Crore, uniess ctherwise stated

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Number of o% Number of o,
Name of the shareholder shares . shares .
(Crore) holding (Crore) holding

Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid-up
Suzlon Energy Limited, holding company 194.61 100% 194.61 100%
{along with its nominees)

Note: As per records of the Company, including is register of shareholders/ members and other declarations
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownership of shares. .

. Other equity

Refer statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in equity balance:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Share option outstanding account* 0.27 0.27
Retained earnings (276.96) (236.03)
Total (276.69) (235.76)

* The share option outstanding account is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments
provided to employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration.

Borrowings

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Non-current

Term loan from banks (secured) 85.60 85.60
Loans from related party (unsecured) 347.53 479.24
Total 433.13 564.84
Current

Working capital facilities from banks (secured) 6.39 9.64
Total 6.39 9.64

a) Corporate debt restructuring

During the financial year ended March 31, 2013, Suzlon Energy Limited (‘SEL’} along with its identified
domestic subsidiaries and a joint venture collectively referred to as the ‘Borrowers’ and individually as the
‘Borrower’, had restructured various financial facilities (restructured facilities) from the secured CDR lenders
under the Corporate Debt Restructuring Proposal. Pursuant to approval of CDR Package by the CDR
Empowered Group ('CDR EG'), the implementation of the CDR package was formalised upon execution of
Master Restructuring Agreement (MRA) between the CDR Lenders and Borrowers during the financial year
ending March 31, 2013. The MRA inter-alia covers the provisions to govern the terms and conditions of
restructured facilities.
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All amounts in Rupees Crore, untess otherwise stated

The key features of the CDR package are as follows:

vi.

vii.

Repayment of Restructured Term Loans ('RTL") after moratorium of 2 years from cut-off date in 32
structured quarterly instalments commencing from December 2014 to September 2022, The moratorium
period of 2 years has expired on September 30, 2014,

. Conversion of various irregular/ outstanding / devolved financial facilities into Working Capital Term Loan

(WCTL’) and the repayment terms of which are in similar to that of RTL with enabling mandatory
prepayment obligations on realisation of proceeds from certain asset sale and capital infusion.

Restructuring of existing fund based and non-fund based working capital facilities, subject to renewal and
reassessment every year.

Unpaid Interest due on certain existing facilities on cut-off date, interest accrued during the moratorium
period on RTL and WCTL and interest on fund based working capital facilities for certain period were to
be converted into Funded Interest Term Loans {'FITLs") and which were to be converted into equity shares
of the Company.

The rate of interest on RTL, WCTL, FITL and fund based working capital facilities were reduced to 11.00%
per annum with reset option in accordance with MRA.

Waiver of existing events of defaults, penal interest and charges etc. in accordance with MRA.

Contribution of Rs 250.00 Crore in SEL by promoters, their friends, relatives and business associates as
stipulated, conversion of existing promoter's loan of Rs 145.00 Crore into equity shares / CCDs at the
price determined in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Other key features of the CDR Package are:

Right of Recompense to CDR Lenders for the relief and sacrifice extended, subject to provisions of CDR
Guidelines and MRA and;

. SEL to issue equity shares in lieu of sacrifice of the CDR Lenders for the first three years from cut-off date

at the price determined in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India, if exercised by CDR
lenders.

In case of financial facilities availed from the non-CDR Lenders, the terms and conditions shall continue
to be governed by the provisions of the existing financing documents.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the restructuring proposal with Power Finance
Corporation (‘PFC') which is a non-CDR lender was approved by CDR EG. As per the terms of
restructuring, the PFC has converted certain portion of interest accrued into FITL land FITL 1L, Repayment
of outstanding term loan would be in accordance with terms and conditions similar to those of RTL,
whereas repayment of FITL | would be made in 32 equal guarterly instalments and should be co-terminus
with RTL. Repayment of FITL Il would be made in 12 quarterly instalments from December 2022 to
September 2025, To give effect to the restructuring a bilateral agreement between the Borrower and PFC
was entered into on August 12, 2015,

b) Loans from related parties comprise of inter Corporate Deposit from the holding company SEL, which carries
interest @11% p.a. and used for business coperations. As per the terms of the agreement between the
Company and lender (SEL), the lender consents that it will not raise any demand on the Borrower to make
any prepayment of the Loan provided under the agreement during the term up to March 31, 2020,

¢} The rate of interest on cash credit from banks and long-term borrowings is ~11.00% p.a. during the year.
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d) The details of security for the current and non-current secured loans are as follows:

In case of financial facilities from CDR lenders in accordance with MRA and non-CDR lenders, RTL of Rs
85.60 Crore (Previous year: Rs 85.60 Crore) classified as long-term borrowings fund based working capital
facilities of Rs 6.39 Crore (Previous year: Rs 8.64 Crore), and non-fund based working capital facilities are
secured by first pari passu charge on all chargeable present and future tangible/intangible movable assets of
each of the Borrowers, first charge on all chargeable present and future immovable assets (excluding the
identified properties) of each of the Borrowers, first charge on all present and future chargeable current assets
of each of the Borrowers, first charge over Trust and Retention Account {TRA") and other bank accounts of
the Borrowers, pledge of equity shares held by SEL in its identified domestic subsidiaries which are forming
part of the Borrowers, negative lien over the equity shares held by SEL in SE Forge Limited, pledge on shares
of Suzlen Energy Limited, Mauritius {'SELM") held by SEL, negative lien over the equity shares of certain
overseas subsidiaries of SEL held by its step down overseas subsidiaries, pledge of certain equity shares of
SEL held by its promoters, personal guarantee of the chairman and managing director of SEL and limited
personal guarantee of an erstwhile director of a fellow subsidiary .

The details of repayment of long-term borrowing are as follows:

Upto1year 2to5years Ab;::r: Total
Secured loans®
March 31, 2018 - 85.60 - 85.60
March 31, 2017 - 72.44 13.16 85.60
Unsecured loans
March 31, 2018 - 347.53 - 347.53
March 31, 2017 - 479.24 - 479.24

* The effective rate of interest on the long term and short term borrowing is at ~ 11.00% p.a. during the year.

14. Trade payables

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade payables 95.77 119.09
Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

{refer Note below) g.12 0.01
Trade payables to related parties 2.95 1.13
Total 98.84 120.23

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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a) Details of dues to micro and smail enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars March 31, 2018

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 0.12
the year ’

Interest due on the above amount Nil
The amount of interest paid by in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 Nil
Amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 0.02
during the year, '
Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making Nil
payment but without adding the interest specified under this Act

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year* Nil
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, untii such date when the interest dues as above are 4.55

actually paid to the small enterprise

March 31, 2017
0.0

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

3.83

* Interest payable as per section 16 of the Micro, Small and medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008, for the
year is Rs 4.55 Crore (Previous year: Rs 3.83 Crore). The same has not been accrued in the books of the

Company as amount is not contractually payable.

. Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Current
Current maturities of long-term borrowings - -
Interest accrued on borrowings 0.79 0.80
Other liabilities* 16.33 16.72
17.12 16,52

* Primarily includes provision for recompense liability, incentive and bonus payable.

All the financial liabilities are disciosed at amortised cost.

Other current liabilities

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Advance from customers 52.44 4.66
Statutory dues 7.44 0.58
Total 59.88 5.24
Provisions

Non-current: It consists of provision for employee benefits of Rs 0.34 Crore (Previous year: Rs 0.59 Crore).

Current: it consists of provision for employee benefits of Rs 0.66 Crore (Previous year: Rs 0.85 Crore).

Ised ?
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Suzion Power Infrastructure Limited
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. Revenue from operations
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Power evacuation infrastructure services 118.96 390.04
Sale of goods 1.90 0.15
Total 120.86 390.19

Other income

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Interest income on:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

on deposits with banks 0.12 0.15
on other financial assets 0.24 0.40
Total 0.36 0.55

Cost of materiais consumed and bought out services

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Consumption of raw material

Opening inventory . 11.09 23.86
Add : Purchases 33.66 98.81
Add : Work contract and services 96.32 183.66
140.97 306.33
Less : Closing inventory 29.50 11.09
111.47 295,24
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods
Opening inventory
Work-in-progress 90.18 117.55
Finished goods 86.74 87.81
{A) 176.92 205.36
Closing inventory
Work-in-progress 110.47 80.18
Finished goods 81.83 86.74
(B) 192.30 176.92
Changes in inventory (C) = (A} - (B) (15.38) 28.44

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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. Employee benefits expense
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus 6.00 7.39
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer Note 28) 0.55 0.42
Share based payments (refer Note 29) - 0.03
Staff welfare expenses 0.06 0.09
Total ' 6.61 7.93

Finance costs

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Interest expenses on;
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

on term loans , 8.65 9,96
on inter corporate deposits 42.68 48.71
on other financial liabitities 272 1.80
Bank charges 0.64 1.20
Compensation in lieu of bank sacrifice 1.65 1.48
Total 57.34 63.15
Other expenses
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Site operating expenses 0.40 0.96
Application and processing fee 0.03 0.88
Repairs and maintenance-computers 0.05 0.08
Rent (refer Note 30) 0.01 0.04
Rates and taxes 0.23 2.48
insurance 0.10 0.24
Advertisement and sales promotion 0.05 0.05
Travelling, conveyance and vehicte expenses 0.53 0.75
Communication expenses 0.02 0.03
Auditors' remuneration and expenses (refer Note below) 0.08 0.11
Consultancy charges 1.15 0.79
Charity and donations 2.25 1.00
Other selling and administrative expenses 0.20 0.25
Impairment allowance (1.18) 0.82
Bad debts written off 0.12 0.05
Allowances for doubtful debts and advances {1.79) {0.05)
(Profit)/ loss on property, plant and equipment sold/ discarded, net 0.00* -
Total 2,25 8.46

* Less than Rs 0.01 Crore.

Acd?ants




Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

All amounts in Rupees Crore, unless otherwise stated

Payments {o auditors

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Statutory audit fees 0.08 0.10
Tax audit fees*™ - 0.00*
Vat audit feeg™* - 0.01
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.00* 0.00*
Total 0.08 0.11

* Less than Rs 0.01 Crore.
*" Includes payment to earlier statutory auditor.

24. Excepticnal items

During the year ended March 31, 2017, impairment loss of Rs 32.18 Crore represented the write-down value of
investment in wholly owned subsidiary to the recoverable amount as a result of operational losses. The
recoverable amount of Rs 159.42 Crore as at March 31, 2017 was based on value in use and was determined

at the entity level. In determining value in use for the CGU, the cash flows were discounted at a rate of 13% on
a pre-tax basis.

25, Income tax

a. As the Company has tax losses, there is no income tax expense to statement of profit and loss for the year
ended March 31, 2018,

b. Recenciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit muitiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31,
2018 and March 31, 2017:

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Accounting profit before income tax (41.18) (44.83)
Enacted tax rates 34.61% 34.61%
Computed tax expense {14.25) (15.51)
Non-deductible expenses as per income tax 0.80 0.35
Current year losses on which deferred tax assets not recognised 13.45 15.17

At the effective income tax rate of 34.61% (Previous year: 34.61%) - -

c. The following is the details of carry forward losses and unused credit on which no deferred tax asset is
recognised by the Company. Unabsocrbed depreciation is available for offsetting all future taxable profits of
the Company. Business losses are available for offsetting future taxable profits of the Company for 8 years
from the year in which losses arose. Majority of the business losses will expire between March 2021 to March
2023. MAT credit wilt expire between March 2024 to March 20286.

Carried forward losses

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Business loss 203.52 168.85
Unabsorbed depreciation 1.58 1.45

MAT credit 1.73
Total - 206.83
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26. Components of other comprehensive income (OCl)

27.

28.

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 0.25 {0.37)
Total 0.25 {0.37)
Earnings per share (EPS)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Basic and diluted
Loss after tax (41.18) (44.83)
Weighted average number of equity shares 194,610,000 194,610,000
Basic and diluted earnings/ {loss) per share of Rs 10/- each (2.12) {2.30)
Post-employment benefit plans
Defined contribution plan:
During the year the Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit or loss:

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Employer Contribution {owards provident fund / pension fund 0.34 0.29

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five or more years of
service is eligible for gratuity. Gratuity is computed based on 15 days salary based on last drawn salary for each
completed year of service. The scheme is partially funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying
insurance policy.

Net employees benefit expense recognised in profit or loss and in other comprehensive income:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current service cost 0.18 0.09
Net interest cost A 0.02 0.00*
Net defined benefit cost recognised in profit and loss 0.18 0.09
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement for the period - Obligation (gain)/ loss (0.24) 0.40
Re-measurement for the period — Plan assets {(gain)/ loss (0.01) (0.03)
Total defined benefit cost recognised in OC| (0.25) 0.37
Total (0.07) 0.46

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation:

Opening defined henefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Acquisition adjustments / settlement cost

Re-measurement adjustment:

Experience adjustments

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions
Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

Opening fair value of plan assets

Interest income

Contributions by employer towards approved fund
Benefits paid

Acquisition adjustments / settlement cost

Re-measurement-return on plan asset, excluding amount recognised in

net interest expenses
Closing fair value of plan assets

Actual return on plan assets

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet:

Current portion

Non-current portion

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the period
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet

Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations:

Discount rate (in %)

Future salary increases {in %)
Life expectation (in years)
Attrition rate

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

1.44 0.91
0.16 0.09
0.10 0.07

(0.21) (0.02)
0.11 (0.01)
0.03 0.16
0.01 (0.01)

(0.28) 0.25
1.36 1.44

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

1.056 0.82
0.08 0.07
0.08 017
{0.21) (0.02)
0.11 (0.01)
5.01 0.02
1.12 1.05
0.08 .07

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

0.13 -
1.23 1.44
1.36 1.44
1.12 1.05

(0.24) (0.39)

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

7.70

8.00

8.30

17.10% at
younger age and
reducing to
8.20% at older
ages according to
graduated scale

7.00

10.00

7.04

22% at younger
ages and
reducing to 11%
at older ages
according to
graduated scale
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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During the year, the Company has reassessed the actuarial assumption for attrition rate based on trend of attrition.
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
I 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Sensitivity level increase decrease Increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit
obligations (0.11) 0.12 {010 012 0.12 (0.11) 0.10 (0.09)

For the year ending on March 31, 2019 the Company expects to contribute Rs 0.38 Crore (Previous year: Rs
0.18 Crore) towards its defined benefit plan.

The average duration of the defined henefit pian obligation at the end of the reporting peried is 9 years
(Previous year: 10.23 years).

Share-based payments
Employees Stock Option Plan 2014

The Scheme shall be applicable to the employees of SEL, its subsidiary companies in India (including the
Company) and abroad, any successor company thereof and may be granted to the employees of SEL and its
subsidiary companies, as determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Options granted under
this Scheme would vest in tranches not earlier than one year and not later than a maximum of three years
{revised to five years) from the date of grant of such opticns. Vesting of options would be subject to continued
empioyment with SEL or its subsidiary companies, as the case may be, and thus the options would vest on
passage of time. The options would be granted at an exercise price equal to the closing market price of the,
shares of SEL or certain discount to the closing market price on the NSE on the date of grant or such other price
as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Once the options vest as per the schedule,
they would be exercisable by the option holder and the shares arising on exercise of such options shall not be
subject to any lock-in period provided however that the shares allotted on such exercise cannot be sold for a
period of 30 days from the date of allotment in terms of the insider trading code of SEL. The employee stock
options granted shall be capable of being exercised within a period of three years (revised to five years) from the
date of first vesting. Payment of the exercise price shall be made by a crossed cheque or a demand draft drawn
in favour of SEL, or in such other manner as the Nomination and Remuneration Committee may decide.

SEL has provided employee stock opticn and purchase schemes to its employees. The total expense recognised
in the books of the Company arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions is Rs Nil (Previous
year: Rs 0.03 Crorg),

Fair value of options

The Company measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using a Laftice model to determine
the fair value of the liability incurred.

Operating leases

The Company has taken certain premises under canceilable operating leases. The {otal rental expenses under
operating lease during the year was Rs 0.01Crore (Previous year: Rs 0.04 Crore).

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for, net of advances
Rs 0.40 Crore (Previous year: Rs 0.01 Crore).
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32. Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest payable under MSMED Act, 2006 4.55 3.83

a) The Company has stood as co-borrower for foans granted to SEL and its subsidiaries for which certain
securities are provided, the amount of which is not ascertainable.

b) The Company, holding Company along with its identified Indian subsidiaries and a joint venture are obligors
to the State Bank of India and other Indian lenders and have given security on behalf in connection with loan

availed by AE Rotor Holding B.V. ({AERH'"). The outstanding amount of loan of AERH as at March 31, 2018
is USD 569.40 Million. Refer Note 39 a.

33. Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
For details of securities provided on behalf of borrowers under the CDR package refer Note 13(a) and 13(d),
For details of investments made refer Note 5.

34. Segment information
The Company provides facilities related to wind power business and has a single reportable segment as defined
in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segment. The Company provides these facilities only in India and hence the entire
amount of revenue is from external customers based in India and all non-current assets are also located in India.
The Company does not have a single external customer who contributes 10% or more to entity's revenue.

35. Related party transactions

A. List of related parties and nature of relationships where control exists:

S;" Name of the party Nature of relationship

1 Suzlon Energy Limited Holding company

2 Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limited Subsidiary company

Suzlon Global Services Limited .-

3 (formerly known as Suzlon S?ructures Limited) Fellow subsidiary

4 Balrajsinh A, Parmar Key managerial personnel {(KMP)

5  Devendra Golchha Key managerial personnel (KMP)

6 GitaT. Tanti Key managerial personnel (KMP)

7 Sharvari A. Deshpande Key managerial personnel (KMP)

8  Vinod R. Tanti Key managerial personnel (KMP})

§  Vaidhyanathan Raghuraman Key managerial personne! (KMP}

10 Venkataraman Subramanian Key managerial personne! (KMP)

11 Aspen Infrastructures Limited Entities where KMP have significant influence
12 M/s. Aarav Renewable Energy Entities where KMP have significant influence
13 M/s. Rajan Renewable Energy Entities where KMP have significant influence
14 Sandla Wind Project Private Limited Entities where KMP have significant influence
156  Saroja Renewables Limited Entities where KMP have significant influence
16  SE Freight & Logistics (India) Private Limited Entities where KMP have significant influence
17 Shanay Renewable Limited Entities where KMP have significant influence
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S;‘ Name of the party Nature of relationship

18  Skeiron Renewable Energy Kustagi Private Limited Entities where KMP have significant influence

19 Tanti Holdings Private Limited Entities where KMP have significant influence

20 Suzlon Powelr Infrastructure Limited -
Superannuation fund

21 Suzion Power Infrastructure Limited - Gratuity fund Employee funds

Employee funds

B. Transactions between the Company and related parties during the year and the status of
outstanding balances as at March 31, 2018:

expenses

—
[
o~

o
—
)
Qe
L~
t
—
3
Faame ¥
L}
p—
—
1

Holding Subsidiary Fellow Entities KMP Employee
company company subsidiaries where KMP funds
Particulars has
significant
influence
Loans received 149.84 - - - - -
(233.60) {-) (-} (-) {-) (-)
Sale of goods and services 15,17 17.156 0.06 27.99 - ~
(64.07) (37.66) (3.10) {17.50) (-) {~)
Purchase of goods and 0.17 0.83 66.38 - -
services (0.44) {0.12) {0.02 (140.23) (-} {-)
Interest expense 42.68 - - .
(48.71) (-} (- (- (-) {-)
Reimbursement of 0.60 - -
)
)

L~
1
I N T T S CUUSC R B A S B e |
—~
1
N R O (VI T S
—
o
(]
"]
—
—
1

)
Remuneration - - 0.47
(-} {-)
Director sitting fees - - 0.01
(-) (-) {- {- (0.02) (-}
Contribution to - - 0.01
Superannuation fund (-) (-) (- (- (-) (-)
Contribution to gratuity - - - 0.04
fund (-) (-) (- (- (=) ©17)
Qutstanding balances:
Particulars Holding Subsidiary Fellow Entities KMP Employee
company company subsidiaries where KMP funds
has
significant
influence
Trade receivables 2.50 20.23 - 17.48 - -
(27.79) (38.81) (-} {2.38) (=) (-)
Trade payables 0.05 - - 2.90 - -
(0.45) (0.05) (-) (0.63) (-2 (-)
Unsecured loan 347.53 - - - - -
(479.24) - - - - -

* Figures in the brackets are in respect of the previous year.
SKING
Qj?“
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C. Disclosure of significant transactions with related parties:

Type of . ; .
Tg.':\)nsaction Type of relationship Name of the entity/ person March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
gales of gocds  Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited 15.17 64.07
services
Subsidiary company Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limited 17.15 37.66
Entities where KMP has  SE Freight & Logistics {India) Private ) 2 a7
significant influence Limited '
Entities where KMP has ' . . -
significant infiuence Sandla Wind Project Private Limited - 15.43
Entities where KMP has Sarga Renewables Limited . 9.01 -
significant influence Skeiron Renewable Energy Kustagi 12.72 y
Private Limited '
Pur((:jhasedof Holding company Suzion Energy Limited 0.17 0.44
oods an
gervices Subsidiary company Suzion Gujarat Wind Park Limited 1.43 0.12
Entities where KMP has  Aspen Infrastructure Limited 66.38 7468
significant influence Tanti Holdings Private Limited - 65.55
Type of . . .
Tra:)nsaction Type of relationship Name of the entity/ person March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest - -
Expenses Hoiding company Suzlon Energy Limited 4268 48.71
Reimbursement - . . -
of expenses Subsidiary company Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limited 0.60 0.15
i?|rector sitting Vaidhyanathan Raghuraman 0.01 0.01
€55
KMP Venkataraman Subramanian 0.01 0.01
Gita T. Tanti 0.00* 0.00*
Loans received  Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited 149.84 223.6C
Remuneration  gmp Devendra Golchha 0.26 (0.02)
KMP Sharvari A. Deshpande 0.21 -

Contribution to Suzlen Power Infrastructure Limited —

%:]%erannuatlon Empioyee fund Superannuation 0.01 -
Contribution to Employee fund Suzion Power Infrastruciure Limited — 0.04 0.17

gratuity fund Gratuity fund

* Less than Rs 0.01 Crore.

Compensation of key management personnel recognised as an expenses during the reporting period:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Short-term employee benefits 0.44 0.02
Post-employment benefits 0.03 -
Total capital 0.47 0.02
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. Fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are considered to be same as their carrying values. In case of
investment in subsidiary it is being carried at deemed cost. Accordingly the Company has not disclosed fair value
hierarchy.

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and {o provide support its operations.
The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee
the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial
performance.

a. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financiat instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk,
Financial instruments affected by markef risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Recompense liability payable by the company to CDR
lenders could be affected due to changes in market interest rate (refer Note 3(b)).

ii} Pricerisk

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commedities. 1ts operating activilies require the
on-going purchase of electrical items for power evacuation which are affected by the commodity price.
The Company has a risk management strategy and planning regarding commodity price risk and its
mitigation.

b. Credit risk

Credi risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
{primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities (primarily loans). The Company consistently
monitors the financial health of its customers, progress under its contracts and sales proceeds are being
realized as per the milestone payment terms agreed to minimize the loss due to defauits or insolvency of the
customer. Progressive liguidity management is being followed to de-risk the Company from any non-fulfilment
of its liabilities to various creditors, statutory obligations, or any stakeholders.

[THIS PLACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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iy Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to trade receivables is limited due to diversified customer base. The Company
consistently monitors the financial health of its customers, progress under its contracts and sales proceeds
are being realised as per the milestone payment terms agreed to minimise the loss due to defaults or
insolvency of the customer.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively.

Refer Note 2.3{m) for accounting pelicy on financial instruments.
i} Financial instruments

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk primarily consist of cash and cash
equivalents, term deposit with banks and other financial assets. Investments of surplus funds are made
only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2018 and as at March 31, 2017 is the
carrying value of each class of financial assets.

¢. Liguidity risk

The Liquidity risk refers to that risk where the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective
of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as
per requirement. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions. The Company
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring
cash flow forecast and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over
with existing lenders.

Maturity profile of companies borrowing is disclosed in Note 13.
All other financial liability is repayable within 12 months.
38. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and ait other equity
reserves attributable fo the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to safeguard its ability to reduce the cost of capital and to maximise shareholder value.

The capital structure of the Company is based on the management’s judgement of its strategic and day-to-day
needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence.

The calculation of the capital for the purpose of capital management is as below.

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Equity share capital 194.61 194.61
Other equity (276.69) (235.76)
Total capital {82.08) {41.15)

@imants }
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39. Other matter

a, The Company, hoiding Company alang with its identified Indian subsidiaries and a joint venture are obligors

to the State Bank of india and other Indian tenders under an Onshore SBLC Facility Agreement and have
given security on behalf of AE Rotor Holding B.V. (AERH"} a step down wholly owned subsidiary of the
hotding company under the Offshore SBLC Facility Agreement for the issuance of the stand-by letter of credit
by State Bank of India in favour of the Security Agent acting on behaif of the lenders of AERH. The
outstanding amount of loan as at March 31, 2018 is USD 569.40 Million. In accordance with the loan
agreement the said loan is repayable in February 2023. The Company has treated the said guarantee as an
insurance contract under Ind AS 104 and has assessed that no provision is required thereon as on March
31, 2018,

b. Going concern

During the current year the Company has continued 1o incur losses and as at the year-end its net-worth is
fully eroded with the accumulated losses aggregating to Rs 276.96 Crore. These factors indicate the
existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as
going concern,

However, the Company is able to operate uninterruptedly discharging all its liabilities in the course of its
business with the unconditional financial support from the holding company. As at March 31, 2018 the
outstanding unsecured loan from holding company is Rs 347.53 Crore (Previous year: Rs 479.24 Crore).

Also, based on the future business plans, in the opinion of the management, the Company will be able to

generate profits and raise capital in the future in excess if it's accumulated losses and continue to operate
as a going concern.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Suzlon Power Infrastructure Limited

Balrajﬁlnh A. Parmar
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